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1.  Theft by False Pretenses 
Penal Code 532 PC

1.
The California Crime of "Theft by False Pretenses" 
Penal Code 532 PC

Try watching this video on www.youtube.com, or enable JavaScript if it is 
disabled in your browser.
When most people think of theft crimes, they probably think of things like burglary and robbery 
- theft committed through an act of physical force, like breaking into someone's house or 
threatening them with violence.

But California criminal law recognizes another form of theft as well-one that is based on brains 
rather than brawn. This is the crime of theft by false pretenses, which is described in Penal Code 
532 PC.

Basically, theft by false pretenses is the act of convincing someone to voluntarily give you their 
property, by telling them something that isn't true or making a promise that won't be kept.1 
Because we normally think of theft as the act of taking away someone's property against their 
will, it may surprise you to learn that the crime of theft by false pretenses even exists. And, 
indeed, many people who are charged with this crime are rightfully shocked to find out that they 
are being called "thieves."

But the fact is that "false pretenses" is a theft crime just like shoplifting or grand theft auto. If 
you are charged with this crime, you may face the same kinds of penalties as someone who is 
charged with one of those more conventional kinds of theft.

Penalties

Theft by false pretenses can be either petty theft or grand theft, depending on the value of the 
property that is taken.2

If the property stolen is worth more than nine hundred fifty dollars ($950), or is a firearm or a 
car, then it is grand theft.3 The maximum penalty for grand theft is EITHER up to one (1) year in 
county jail, OR sixteen (16) months, two (2) years, or three (3) years in prison, depending on 
how the prosecutor chooses to charge the crime.4

If the property is worth less than nine hundred fifty dollars ($950), then false pretense theft is 
petty theft. The maximum penalty will be a fine of up to one thousand dollars ($1,000), 
imprisonment in the county jail for up to six (6) months, or both the fine and imprisonment.5

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=q01hJ7mNIkQ
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/burglary.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/robbery.html
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Defenses

Luckily, there are legal defenses that could help you beat charges of theft by false pretenses. 
With the help of an experienced California criminal defense attorney, you can figure out which 
defenses make the most sense for the facts of your case. Two very common and helpful defenses 
for Penal Code 532 PC charges are:

1. You did not intend to deceive the supposed theft victim, and
2. The person you are supposed to have stolen from did not actually rely on anything you 

said.6 
In this article, our California criminal defense attorneys7 explain the crime of theft by false 
pretenses by addressing the following:

• 1. Legal definition of theft by false pretenses (Penal Code 532 PC)
◦ 1.1. Knowingly and intentionally deceiving someone by a false pretense
◦ 1.2. Intent to persuade someone to give up property
◦ 1.3. Reliance by the other person on the false pretense
◦ 1.4. False token, writing, or witnesses

• 2. Penalties for theft by false pretenses
◦ 2.1. Petty theft penalties
◦ 2.2. Grand theft penalties

• 3. Legal defenses against charges of false pretense theft
◦ 3.1. Lack of intent to deceive
◦ 3.2. Lack of reliance

• 4. Related offenses
◦ 4.1. Check fraud
◦ 4.2. Internet fraud
◦ 4.3. Unemployment insurance fraud
◦ 4.4. Senior fraud

If you would like more information after reading this article, we invite you to contact us at 
Shouse Law Group.

1. Legal definition of theft by false pretenses (Penal Code 532 
PC)

As we discussed above, the California crime of theft by false pretenses consists of lying to 
someone else in order to persuade them to give you their property or something of value.

You cannot be convicted of this crime unless the prosecutor can prove that several more specific 
pieces of this story -- known as "elements" of the crime -- are true. These are:

1.1. Knowingly and intentionally deceiving someone by a false pretense

The first element of the crime of false pretense theft is that you need to have knowingly and 

https://www.shouselaw.com/
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#1
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#1.1
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#1.2
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#1.3
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#1.4
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#2
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#2.1
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#2.2
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#3
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#3.1
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#3.2
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#4
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#4.1
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#4.2
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#4.3
https://www.shouselaw.com/theft-false-pretenses.html#4.4
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intentionally deceived someone-that is, made someone believe something that wasn't true-by 
saying or showing them something that was actually false.8 This means that you need to have 
known that what you were saying wasn't true, and you need to have intended that the other 
person believe it anyway.

Example: Tom injures his back while working as a truck driver and begins to collect workers' 
compensation benefits. In order to continue receiving benefits, he tells workers' comp officials 
that he cannot handle tasks like showering, dressing, and cooking without help and can only 
move with the help of a cane or walker.

The workers' compensation insurance company sends a private investigator to follow Tom one 
day. The private investigator makes a video of Tom walking and driving without assistance and 
doing some very strenuous things on a fishing boat, including piloting the boat, climbing a 
ladder, and lifting heavy objects.

In addition to possibly being guilty of workers' compensation
fraud, Tom is guilty of theft by false pretenses. He must have known that his statements to the 
workers' compensation board were false . . . and he made these statements intentionally, in order 
to deceive the board so that he could get benefits.9 
According to Ventura County criminal defense attorney John Murray10 :

"Of course, as we all know, sometimes the line between 'true' and 'false' can be a little blurry. For 
this reason, California law defines a 'false pretense' pretty broadly. It isn't just limited to 
straightforward statements of fact that you know aren't true. "
A "false pretense" also includes:

1. Making a statement recklessly, without knowing for sure that it is not true...but also 
without any information that would justify a reasonable belief that it is true;

2. Failing to give information that you would have an obligation to give under the 
circumstances; and

3. Making a promise that you do not intend to keep.11 
Example: Norman is a chiropractor who tells patients that he can cure serious diseases, including 
cancer, using an experimental electric machine. It turns out that the machine is more or less 
worthless and has no scientific evidence behind it. Norman's patients pay him but continue to get 
sicker.

Norman is guilty of theft by false pretenses even if he didn't know for sure that his claims about 
his machine were not true. He recklessly claimed that the machine could cure diseases without 
any good reason for believing that it was true.12 
1.2. Intent to persuade someone to give up property

Another element of the California crime of false pretense theft is that you need to have intended 
to persuade another person to give up their property to you.13 If you only intended to deceive 
them for some other purpose, or for no purpose at all, you can't be convicted.

https://www.shouselaw.com/workers_comp_fraud.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/workers_comp_fraud.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/office-ventura.html
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Example: Paul decides to tell people that he is a messenger of God and that the end of the world 
is coming. He doesn't believe this, but is curious how people will react. His story and photo 
spread over the internet, and lots of people believe that what he is saying is true. People start 
sending him money, which he has not requested.

Paul isn't guilty of theft by false pretenses because he never intended to persuade people to give 
him money.
One interesting thing about this crime is that "property" includes someone's labor.14 So if, for 
example, you get someone to do your yard work for a month and promise them that you'll pay 
them at the end of the month, when really you have no intention of ever paying them . . . you 
may have violated Penal Code 532 PC.

The first element of the crime of false pretense theft is that you need to have knowingly and 
intentionally deceived someone
1.3. Reliance by the other person on the false pretense

Another key element of the crime of false pretenses is that the person who gives up their 
property needs to have done so because they were relying on what you told them-or, in other 
words, because they believed that your false statement was true.15

Sometimes, the supposed "victim" of the theft hands over their property for more than one 
reason, only one of which is the fact that they believe something that isn't true. In these cases, it 
can still be the crime of theft by false pretenses...as long as the false pretense was one important 
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factor causing them to give up their property.16

Example: Ted has recently had his checking account closed by his bank for lack of funds. But he 
discovers that he can still get money from ATMs using the card connected to that account. So he 
visits several Safeway grocery stores and takes out thousands of dollars from the store ATMs.

Safeway's machines let Ted have the money for two reasons: first, because he is using his card to 
withdraw money (and thus implying that his card is valid); second, because a glitch in the bank's 
computer system is allowing him to do so. Because Ted's use of his card-which is an implied 
representation that his card is valid-is an important reason why he is getting the money, he is 
guilty of theft by false pretenses . . . even though the computer glitch is another important reason.
17 
1.4. False token, writing, or witnesses

Another important thing the prosecutor needs in order to get a conviction for theft by false 
pretenses under Penal Code 532 PC is concrete proof that the defendant actually made the false 
pretense (that is, said something false or created a false impression). This proof can be in any of 
the following forms:

1. A false writing or "false token" (like fake money) that accompanied the false pretense,
2. A note or memorandum of the false pretense that is signed or handwritten by the 

defendant,
3. Testimony from two witnesses that the defendant made the false pretense, OR
4. Testimony from one witness PLUS corroboration (additional evidence that supports the 

conclusion that the defendant made the pretense).18 
So, for example, if all a prosecutor has is testimony from the purported victim claiming that s/he 
was duped, that is not enough to convict someone of theft by false pretenses. There would need 
to be at least some other form of "additional evidence."

But, in cases where a defendant is charged with using false pretenses to steal from a number of 
people, all in the same way, it's enough for the prosecution to have two witnesses who can testify 
that the defendant made the false pretense at any point. The prosecution does NOT have to offer 
two witnesses (or a witness and additional evidence) who can testify to each individual instance 
of false pretenses. This is best explained by an example:

Example: Lelas runs a scam "credit counseling" business. When people with bad credit contact 
him for help, he tells them that he can improve their credit rating for a fee of around a thousand 
dollars. After taking the fee, Lelas then creates false identities for his clients and tells them to use 
these false identities to apply for loans and credit cards-which is blatantly illegal.

Lelas provides these "services" to Jane and then to Mary. Both Jane and Mary testify that he 
promised to help them and took their money. This is enough evidence to convict Lelas of theft by 
false pretenses. Even though Jane and Mary aren't testifying about the same exact same instance 
of the scam, they could both testify that Lelas ran the scam.19 
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2. Penalties for theft by false pretenses

Theft by false pretenses is punished the same way as other forms of theft in California.20 The 
punishment depends on the type and value of the property that is supposed to have been "stolen."

2.1. Petty theft penalties

When the property stolen is worth less than nine hundred fifty dollars ($950) and is not a car, a 
firearm, livestock, or certain kinds of agricultural products...then a Penal Code 532 PC violation 
is considered petty theft.21

Petty theft is a misdemeanor in Calfornia law. The maximum punishment is six (6) months in 
county jail, a fine of up to one thousand dollars ($1,000), or both.22

2.2. Grand theft penalties

However, if the property taken is worth more than nine hundred fifty dollars ($950), or is a car or 
a firearm, then theft by false pretenses becomes a form of grand theft (California Penal Code 487 
PC).23

In most cases, the crime of grand theft is a wobbler.24 Wobblers are crimes that a prosecutor may 
choose to charge either as a misdemeanor or as a felony. Prosecutors will generally make this 
choice based on the facts of the case and the criminal history (if any) of the defendant.

If grand theft is charged as a misdemeanor, the penalty is up to one (1) year in county jail.25 But 
if it is charged as a felony, the penalty is sixteen (16) months, two (2) years, or three (3) years in 
prison.26

https://www.shouselaw.com/petty-theft.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/misdemeanor.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/grand-theft.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/grand-theft.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/wobbler.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/felony.html
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There is one exception to the rule that grand theft is a wobbler. If the theft of a firearm is 
involved, grand theft will always be charged as a felony.27 The penalty will be either sixteen (16) 
months, two (2) years, or three (3) years in state prison.28

3. Legal defenses against charges of false
pretense theft

Theft by false pretenses is a serious crime. Because it usually involves facts that are more 
complex than those you'd find in most theft crimes, it can be hard to know how to defend 
yourself against these charges. But there are legal 
defenses you can use to defend yourself if you are charged under Penal Code 532 PC. Two of the 
most important of these are:

3.1. Lack of intent to deceive

As we discussed above, you can't be convicted of false pretense theft unless you intentionally 
deceived someone.29 This can mean that you told an intentional lie, or that you:

• withheld or concealed crucial information intending to mislead someone,
• recklessly claimed something was true without knowing if it really was true, OR
• promised to do something when you never intended to do.30 

This may be the toughest element of the crime of theft by false pretenses to prove...since it's hard 

http://www.cdcr.ca.gov/prisons/index.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/legal-defenses.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/legal-defenses.html
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for anyone else to know exactly what was going on in your head. Maybe you genuinely believed 
that what you were saying was true, or that you would be able to keep your promise. You also 
may have made a mistake of fact that caused you to say something that wasn't true...but not with 
the intent to deceive.

When you are accused of a crime, the prosecution bears the burden of proving beyond a 
reasonable doubt that all of the elements of the crime are true. If you can introduce even a 
reasonable doubt that you intended to deceive, then you cannot be convicted of false pretense 
theft.

3.2. Lack of reliance

Another important element of the crime of theft by false pretenses is that the supposed "victim" 
of your crime has to have relied on the false pretense in giving you their property.31 This can be 
another tough element to prove because it depends on a complicated analysis of the other 
person's motives.

In many cases, people are charged with theft by false pretenses in the context of complicated 
business or financial dealings with others. The people who are the so-called "victims" may not be 
victims at all. They may have known exactly what they were getting into . . . but later may try to 
turn the matter into a criminal case when things don't go their way.

This is where the legal defense of lack of reliance comes in. If you can show that the person you 
supposedly stole from did not rely on any deceptive statements by you, then you cannot be 
convicted of false pretense theft.

4. Related offenses

Theft by false pretenses is related to a large number of other California property crimes, 
including white-collar crimes and various forms of criminal fraud. Some of the most important 
of these are:

https://www.shouselaw.com/mistake-law-fact.html
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If you pay for something with a bad check, and obtain someone else's property as a result, that 
could be theft by false pretenses
4.1. Check fraud

If you pay for something with a bad check, and obtain someone else's property as a result, that 
could be theft by false pretenses-the false pretense being the implied statement that the check 
was good. But in those circumstances, you could also be charged with the California crime of 
check fraud (Penal Code 476).

The crime of check fraud consists of passing a fake or altered check with the intent to defraud 
someone else.32 It is considered a form of forgery.33 Thus, it is a
wobbler and may be punished by either one (1) year in county jail (if tried as a misdemeanor), 
OR by sixteen (16) months, two (2) years, or three (3) years in prison (if charged as a felony).34

4.2. Internet fraud

These days, theft by false pretenses may occur over the internet as often as it occurs in person. If 
you are charged with false pretenses theft for a transaction that occurred over email or the 
internet, you may also face charges of internet fraud in California law. You can be charged with 
internet fraud for things like advertising items for sale on the internet, accepting payment for 
those items in advance, and then never delivering them.

This kind of internet fraud is actually a form of the federal crime of wire fraud.35 As a federal 

https://www.shouselaw.com/check-fraud.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/check-fraud.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/forgery.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/internet_fraud.html
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crime, it can lead to extremely harsh penalties...including a fine of up to one million 
($1,000,000), or up to thirty (30) years in federal prison!36

4.3. Unemployment insurance fraud

Earlier in this article, we discussed the example of Tom, who was charged with false pretense 
theft for engaging in a form of workers' compensation fraud. Similarly, theft by false pretenses 
may be charged along with the crime of unemployment insurance fraud when the defendant has 
allegedly lied in order to obtain or continue receiving unemployment benefits.

The crime of unemployment insurance fraud is, in most cases, another
wobbler.37 The maximum penalty when it is a misdemeanor is one (1) year in county jail, and 
the defendant may be sentenced to time in state prison when it is a felony.38

4.4. Senior fraud

If you are charged with false pretenses theft, and your victim is sixty-five (65) or older, you may 
also face charges of senior fraud (also known as elder fraud).

You may be charged with senior fraud if you are accused of committing any form of theft 
(including theft by false pretenses) against a person 65 or older, as long as you either: 1) knew or 
reasonably should have known that they were that age, or 2) were their caretaker when the 
supposed theft occurred.39

This kind of senior fraud is a misdemeanor when the value of the property taken is nine hundred 
fifty dollars ($950) or less. In this case, the maximum penalty is one (1) year in county jail and/or 
a fine of up to one thousand dollars ($1,000).40

And if the property taken is worth more than nine hundred fifty dollars ($950), senior fraud 
becomes a wobbler. When it is charged as a felony, the maximum penalty is as much as four (4) 
years in prison and/or a fine of up to ten thousand dollars ($10,000).41

Call us for help...

http://www.bop.gov/
https://www.shouselaw.com/fraud-unemploymentinsurance.html
https://www.shouselaw.com/senior_fraud.html
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Call us for help
If you or loved one is charged with Penal Code 532 PC theft by false pretenses and you are 
looking to hire an attorney for representation, we invite you to contact us at Shouse Law Group. 
We can provide a free consultation in office or by phone. We have local offices in Los Angeles, 
the San Fernando Valley, Pasadena, Long Beach, Orange County, Ventura, San Bernardino, 
Rancho Cucamonga, Riverside, San Diego, Sacramento, Oakland, San Francisco, San Jose and 
throughout California.

To learn about the Nevada crime of obtaining money by false pretenses, go to our page on the 
Nevada crime of obtaining money by false pretenses.

Legal References:

1. Penal Code 532 PC - False pretenses; obtaining money, labor or property; punishment; 
evidence necessary to support conviction. ("(a) Every person who knowingly and 
designedly, by any false or fraudulent representation or pretense, defrauds any other 
person of money, labor, or property, whether real or personal, or who causes or procures 
others to report falsely of his or her wealth or mercantile character, and by thus imposing 
upon any person obtains credit, and thereby fraudulently gets possession of money or 
property, or obtains the labor or service of another, is punishable in the same manner and 
to the same extent as for larceny of the money or property so obtained.")

2. Penal Code 484 - Theft defined. ("(a) Every person who shall feloniously steal, take, 
carry, lead, or drive away the personal property of another, or who shall fraudulently 
appropriate property which has been entrusted to him or her, or who shall knowingly and 

https://www.shouselaw.com/nevada/obtainingmoney.html
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designedly, by any false or fraudulent representation or pretense, defraud any other 
person of money, labor or real or personal property, or who causes or procures others to 
report falsely of his or her wealth or mercantile character and by thus imposing upon any 
person, obtains credit and thereby fraudulently gets or obtains possession of money, or 
property or obtains the labor or service of another, is guilty of theft.")
See also Penal Code 487 PC - Grand theft defined. ("Grand theft is theft committed in 
any of the following cases: (a) When the money, labor, or real or personal property taken 
is of a value exceeding nine hundred fifty dollars ($950), except as provided in 
subdivision (b). . . . (d) When the property taken is any of the following: (1) An 
automobile, horse, mare, gelding, any bovine animal, any caprine animal, mule, jack, 
jenny, sheep, lamb, hog, sow, boar, gilt, barrow, or pig. (2) A firearm.")

3. Penal Code 487 PC - Grand theft defined.
4. Penal Code 489 PC - Grand theft; punishment. ("Grand theft is punishable as follows: (a) 

When the grand theft involves the theft of a firearm, by imprisonment in the state prison 
for 16 months, two, or three years. (b) In all other cases, by imprisonment in a county jail 
not exceeding one year or pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170.")
See also Penal Code 1170(h) PC - Determinate sentencing. ("(h)(1) Except as provided in 
paragraph (3), a felony punishable pursuant to this subdivision where the term is not 
specified in the underlying offense shall be punishable by a term of imprisonment in a 
county jail for 16 months, or two or three years.")

5. Penal Code 490 PC - Petty theft; punishment. ("Petty theft is punishable by fine not 
exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000), or by imprisonment in the county jail not 
exceeding six months, or both.")

6. Judicial Council of California Criminal Jury Instructions ("CALCRIM") 1804 - Theft by 
False Pretense. ("To prove that the defendant is guilty of this crime, the People must 
prove that: 1 The defendant knowingly and intentionally deceived a property owner [or 
the owner's agent] by false or fraudulent representation or pretense; 2 The defendant did 
so intending to persuade the owner [or the owner's agent] to let the defendant [or another 
person] take possession and ownership of the property; AND 3 The owner [or the owner's 
agent] let the defendant [or another person] take possession and ownership of the 
property because the owner [or the owner's agent] relied on the representation or 
pretense.")

7. Our California and federal criminal defense attorneys have local Los Angeles law offices 
in Beverly Hills, Burbank, Glendale, Lancaster, Long Beach, Los Angeles, Pasadena, 
Pomona, Torrance, Van Nuys, West Covina, and Whittier.  We have additional law 
offices conveniently located throughout the state in Orange County, San Diego, 
Riverside, San Bernardino, Ventura, San Jose, Oakland, the San Francisco Bay area, 
Sacramento, and several nearby cities.

8. CALCRIM 1804 - Theft by False Pretense. ("("To prove that the defendant is guilty of 
this crime, the People must prove that: 1 The defendant knowingly and intentionally 
deceived a property owner [or the owner's agent] by false or fraudulent representation or 
pretense; . . . .")

9. Based on People v. Webb, (1999) 74 Cal.App.4th 688, 693-94. ("Appellant contends he 
did not violate these statutes because his statements about pain and his need for an in-
home attendant were statements of opinion, rather than fact. He suggests that, as a matter 
of public policy, insured persons should not be subject to criminal liability for 



TAKING MONEY UNDER FALSE PRETENSES

www-scannedretina.com - 13 of 25 - arnie@arnierosner.com - 714-964-4056

'exaggerating' their symptoms to obtain medical care that others might deem unnecessary. 
We are not persuaded. . . . Here, the evidence credited by the jury showed that appellant 
did not honestly hold the opinions he expressed. Appellant told Dr. Ovadia that he 
experienced intense pain and was unable to perform even the most basic personal hygiene 
tasks. At the same time, the videotape showed that appellant could drive a car, pilot a 
commercial fishing boat, climb a vertical ladder and hoist his catch onto sorting tables. 
From this evidence, the jury could reasonably conclude that appellant's story was 'fishy' 
in more ways than one. That is to say, appellant knew his pain was not as severe as he 
represented and never honestly held the opinion that he required an in-home attendant.")

10. Ventura criminal defense attorney John Murray defends clients throughout Los Angeles 
and Ventura counties. He has scored "not guilty" verdicts in serious sex crimes and DUI 
cases. Murray has been featured as an expert legal commentator on the Fox News 
Channel.

11. CALCRIM 1804 - Theft by False Pretense. ("[Someone makes a false pretense if, 
intending to deceive, he or she does [one or more of] the following: [1 Gives information 
he or she knows is false(./;)] [OR 2 Makes a misrepresentation recklessly without 
information that justifies a reasonable belief in its truth(./;)] [OR 3 Does not give 
information when he or she has an obligation to do so(./;)] [OR 4 Makes a promise not 
intending to do what he or she promises.]].")

12. Based on People v. Schmitt, (1957) 155 Cal.App.2d 87.
13. CALCRIM 1804 - Theft by False Pretense. ("To prove that the defendant is guilty of this 

crime, the People must prove that: . . . 2 The defendant did so intending to persuade the 
owner [or the owner's agent] to let the defendant [or another person] take possession and 
ownership of the property; . . . .")

14. Same. ("[Property includes money, labor, and real or personal property.]")
15. Same. ("To prove that the defendant is guilty of this crime, the People must prove 

that: . . . 3 The owner [or the owner's agent] let the defendant [or another person] take 
possession and ownership of the property because the owner [or the owner's agent] relied 
on the representation or pretense.")

16. Same. ("[An owner [or an owner's agent] relies on false pretense, if the falsehood is an 
important part of the reason the owner [or agent] decides to give up the property. The 
false pretense must be an important factor, but it does not have to be the only factor the 
owner [or agent] considers in making the decision. [If the owner [or agent] gives up 
property some time after the pretense is made, the owner [or agent] must do so because 
he or she relies on the pretense.]]")

17. Based on People v. Whight, (1995) 36 Cal.App.4th 1143, 1155-56. ("As it turned out, 
there was a glitch in Wells Fargo's system concerning defendant's account. Rather than 
transmitting a code declining the transaction because defendant's account had been 
closed, Wells Fargo kept returning a code to Safeway indicating that there was no 
response. This, in turn, caused Safeway to treat each transaction as a 'stand-in' without a 
verification or approval from the computer banking system. Given these facts, it can 
hardly be said that Safeway relied upon the Well Fargo's computer system instead of 
defendant's representation that his card was valid. Even assuming that the use of a 
computer verification system can be described as an investigation, the computer system 
in fact never approved defendant's transactions. As a result, Safeway had nothing to rely 
upon except defendant's implicit representation that his ATM card was valid. It elected to 

https://www.shouselaw.com/john-murray.html
http://www.foxnews.com/
http://www.foxnews.com/
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take the risk and to rely solely on defendant's representation. On this record, the element 
of reliance or causation was indisputably established.")

18. CALCRIM 1804 - Theft by False Pretense. ("You may not find the defendant guilty of 
this crime unless the People have proved that: [A The false pretense was accompanied by 
either a false writing or false token(;/.)] [OR] [(A/B) There was a note or memorandum of 
the pretense signed or handwritten by the defendant(;/.)] [OR] [(A/B/C) Testimony from 
two witnesses or testimony from a single witness along with other evidence supports the 
conclusion that the defendant made the pretense.]")

19. Based on People v. Gentry, (1991) 234 Cal.App.3d 131, 139. ("Gentry argues this 
implied pretense has not been proven by two or more witnesses, or one witness and other 
corroboration as required by Penal Code section 532, subdivision (b) (formerly Pen. 
Code, § 1110). We disagree. Manchester was not the only witness who testified to 
Gentry's initial statements to persons in desperate financial straits; Terry, disguising 
herself as Wolfe, received the same advice for the same price from Gentry. The multiple 
witnesses required under Penal Code section 532, subdivision (b), need not testify to the 
same instance of pretense. When more than one witness testifies to a defendant's false 
pretenses, even though made on separate occasions, the multiple witness requirement is 
met as long as the same type of scheme is involved and the same manner is employed.")

20. Penal Code 484 - Theft defined. ("(a) Every person who shall feloniously steal, take, 
carry, lead, or drive away the personal property of another, or who shall fraudulently 
appropriate property which has been entrusted to him or her, or who shall knowingly and 
designedly, by any false or fraudulent representation or pretense, defraud any other 
person of money, labor or real or personal property, or who causes or procures others to 
report falsely of his or her wealth or mercantile character and by thus imposing upon any 
person, obtains credit and thereby fraudulently gets or obtains possession of money, or 
property or obtains the labor or service of another, is guilty of theft.")

21. Penal Code 487 PC - Grand theft defined. ("Grand theft is theft committed in any of the 
following cases: (a) When the money, labor, or real or personal property taken is of a 
value exceeding nine hundred fifty dollars ($950), except as provided in subdivision (b). 
(b) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), grand theft is committed in any of the following 
cases: (1)(A) When domestic fowls, avocados, olives, citrus or deciduous fruits, other 
fruits, vegetables, nuts, artichokes, or other farm crops are taken of a value exceeding two 
hundred fifty dollars ($250). (B) For the purposes of establishing that the value of 
domestic fowls, avocados, olives, citrus or deciduous fruits, other fruits, vegetables, nuts, 
artichokes, or other farm crops under this paragraph exceeds two hundred fifty dollars 
($250), that value may be shown by the presentation of credible evidence which 
establishes that on the day of the theft domestic fowls, avocados, olives, citrus or 
deciduous fruits, other fruits, vegetables, nuts, artichokes, or other farm crops of the same 
variety and weight exceeded two hundred fifty dollars ($250) in wholesale value. (2) 
When fish, shellfish, mollusks, crustaceans, kelp, algae, or other aquacultural products are 
taken from a commercial or research operation which is producing that product, of a 
value exceeding two hundred fifty dollars ($250). (3) Where the money, labor, or real or 
personal property is taken by a servant, agent, or employee from his or her principal or 
employer and aggregates nine hundred fifty dollars ($950) or more in any 12 consecutive 
month period. (c) When the property is taken from the person of another. (d) When the 
property taken is any of the following: (1) An automobile, horse, mare, gelding, any 
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bovine animal, any caprine animal, mule, jack, jenny, sheep, lamb, hog, sow, boar, gilt, 
barrow, or pig. (2) A firearm.")
See also Penal Code 488 PC - Petty theft defined. ("Theft in other cases is petty theft.")

22. Penal Code 490 PC - Petty theft; punishment. ("Petty theft is punishable by fine not 
exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000), or by imprisonment in the county jail not 
exceeding six months, or both.")

23. Penal Code 487 PC - Grand theft defined.
24. Penal Code 489 PC - Grand theft; punishment. ("Grand theft is punishable as follows: . . . 

(b) In all other cases, by imprisonment in a county jail not exceeding one year or pursuant 
to subdivision (h) of Section 1170.")

25. Same.
26. Same. See also Penal Code 1170(h) PC. ("(h)(1) Except as provided in paragraph (3), a 

felony punishable pursuant to this subdivision where the term is not specified in the 
underlying offense shall be punishable by a term of imprisonment in a county jail for 16 
months, or two or three years.")

27. Penal Code 489 PC - Grand theft; punishment. ("Grand theft is punishable as follows: (a) 
When the grand theft involves the theft of a firearm, by imprisonment in the state prison 
for 16 months, two, or three years.")

28. Same.
29. CALCRIM 1804 - Theft by False Pretense. ("To prove that the defendant is guilty of this 

crime, the People must prove that: 1 The defendant knowingly and intentionally deceived 
a property owner [or the owner's agent] by false or fraudulent representation or 
pretense; . . . .")

30. Same. ("Someone makes a false pretense if, intending to deceive, he or she does [one or 
more of] the following: [1 Gives information he or she knows is false(./;)] [OR 2 Makes a 
misrepresentation recklessly without information that justifies a reasonable belief in its 
truth(./;)] [OR 3 Does not give information when he or she has an obligation to do so(./;)] 
[OR 4 Makes a promise not intending to do what he or she promises.]]")

31. Same. ("To prove that the defendant is guilty of this crime, the People must prove 
that: . . . 2 The defendant did so intending to persuade the owner [or the owner's agent] to 
let the defendant [or another person] take possession and ownership of the 
property; . . . .")

32. Penal Code 476 PC - Forgery; fictitious or altered bills, notes, or checks. ("Every person 
who makes, passes, utters, or publishes, with intent to defraud any other person, or who, 
with the like intent, attempts to pass, utter, or publish, or who has in his or her possession, 
with like intent to utter, pass, or publish, any fictitious or altered bill, note, or check, 
purporting to be the bill, note, or check, or other instrument in writing for the payment of 
money or property of any real or fictitious financial institution as defined in Section 186.9 
is guilty of forgery.")

33. Same.
34. Penal Code 473 PC - Forgery; punishment. ("Forgery is punishable by imprisonment in a 

county jail for not more than one year, or by imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of 
Section 1170.")
See also Penal Code 1170(h) PC. ("(h)(1) Except as provided in paragraph (3), a felony 
punishable pursuant to this subdivision where the term is not specified in the underlying 
offense shall be punishable by a term of imprisonment in a county jail for 16 months, or 
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two or three years.")
35. 18 United States Code ("U.S.C.") § 1343 - Fraud by wire, radio, or television. 

("Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or 
for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, 
representations, or promises, transmits or causes to be transmitted by means of wire, 
radio, or television communication in interstate or foreign commerce, any writings, signs, 
signals, pictures, or sounds for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice, shall be 
fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both. If the violation occurs 
in relation to, or involving any benefit authorized, transported, transmitted, transferred, 
disbursed, or paid in connection with, a presidentially declared major disaster or 
emergency (as those terms are defined in section 102 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster 
Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5122)), or affects a financial institution, 
such person shall be fined not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 30 
years, or both.")
See also United States v. Selby, (2009) 557 F.3d 968, 979. ("The internal e-mail Selby 
forwarded to her husband . . . is sufficient to establish the element of the use of the wires 
in furtherance of the scheme.")

36. Same.
37. Unemployment Insurance Code 2122. ("Except as provided in Sections 2117, 2117.5, 

2118, and 2118.5, a violation of this chapter is punishable by imprisonment in the county 
jail not to exceed one year, or in the state prison, or by a fine of not more than twenty 
thousand dollars ($20,000), or by both the fine and imprisonment, at the discretion of the 
court.")

38. Same.
39. Penal Code 368 - Crimes against elder or dependent adults. ("(d) Any person who is not a 

caretaker who violates any provision of law proscribing theft, embezzlement, forgery, or 
fraud, or who violates Section 530.5 proscribing identity theft, with respect to the 
property or personal identifying information of an elder or a dependent adult, and who 
knows or reasonably should know that the victim is an elder or a dependent adult, is 
punishable as follows: (1) By a fine not exceeding two thousand five hundred dollars 
($2,500), or by imprisonment in a county jail not exceeding one year, or by both that fine 
and imprisonment, or by a fine not exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000), or by 
imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170 for two, three, or four years, or 
by both that fine and imprisonment, when the moneys, labor, goods, services, or real or 
personal property taken or obtained is of a value exceeding nine hundred fifty dollars 
($950). (2) By a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000), by imprisonment in a 
county jail not exceeding one year, or by both that fine and imprisonment, when the 
moneys, labor, goods, services, or real or personal property taken or obtained is of a 
value not exceeding nine hundred fifty dollars ($950). (e) Any caretaker of an elder or a 
dependent adult who violates any provision of law proscribing theft, embezzlement, 
forgery, or fraud, or who violates Section 530.5 proscribing identity theft, with respect to 
the property or personal identifying information of that elder or dependent adult, is 
punishable as follows: (1) By a fine not exceeding two thousand five hundred dollars 
($2,500), or by imprisonment in a county jail not exceeding one year, or by both that fine 
and imprisonment, or by a fine not exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000), or by 
imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170 for two, three, or four years, or 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1343
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by both that fine and imprisonment, when the moneys, labor, goods, services, or real or 
personal property taken or obtained is of a value exceeding nine hundred fifty dollars 
($950). (2) By a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000), by imprisonment in a 
county jail not exceeding one year, or by both that fine and imprisonment, when the 
moneys, labor, goods, services, or real or personal property taken or obtained is of a 
value not exceeding nine hundred fifty dollars ($950).")

40. Same.
41. Same.
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2.  you folks are not doing your enumerated responsibilities, well!!! And FOIA 
to boot.
From: Ron Vrooman <ronvrooman38@gmail.com>
Subject: you folks are not doing your enumerated 
responsibilities, well!!! And FOIA to boot.
Date: December 13, 2018 at 6:20:14 PM PST
To: michael_mosman@ord.uscourts.gov, 
anna_brown@ord.uscourts.gov, "Uram, Seth (USAOR)" 
<Seth.Uram@usdoj.gov>, Eric_Oss@ord.uscourts.gov, 
"Knobbs, Karl (USMS)" <karl.knobbs@usdoj.gov>, 
"Nordquist, Marc (USMS)" <marc.nordquist@usdoj.gov>
Cc: Kambiz Moradi <moradihkz@gmail.com>, Ray Senkel 
<rayse76@juno.com>, Cespedes Capt Cesar A 
<cesar.cespedes@usmc.mil>, ng.or.orarng.list.j3-provost-
marshal@mail.mil, WEBMASTER@cit.uscourts.gov, 
cmecf_helpdesk@cit.uscourts.gov, USAEO-FOIA 
Requests <usaeo.foia.requests@usdoj.gov>, 
MRUFOIA.Requests@usdoj.gov, Jane Fitzgerald 
<jane.fitzgerald@nara.gov>, jessica.hartman@nara.gov, 
Rose Buchanan <rose.buchanan@nara.gov>, 
ogis@nara.gov, Dale Hoskins 
<dhoskins@beavertonoregon.gov>, Chris Lamberger 
<clamberger@beavertonoregon.gov>, Jim Monger 
<jmonger@beavertonoregon.gov>, 
rgroshong@beavertonoregon.gov, 
eoathes@beavertonoregon.gov, Tim Kempton 
<tkempton@beavertonoregon.gov>, Bill Kirby 
<bkirby@beavertonoregon.gov>, Carla Saunders 
<csaunders@beavertonoregon.gov>, Kathy Bose 
<kathy_bose@co.washington.or.us>, John Koch 
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<john_koch@co.washington.or.us>, 
john_gerhard@co.washington.or.us, Roger Hanlon 
<roger_hanlon@co.washington.or.us>, Samantha 
Swindler <sswindler@oregonian.com>, 
leahsottile@gmail.com, info@oregonsheriffs.org, Trump 
<info@mail.whitehouse.gov>, 
info@katebrownfororegon.com, 
info@projectveritasaction.com, 
attorneygeneral@doj.state.or.us, Secretary of State 
Dennis Richardson 
<Secretary.Richardson@public.govdelivery.com>, 
sen.petercourtney@state.or.us, Senator Jeff Merkley 
<senator_merkley@merkley.senate.gov>, 
Sen.KimThatcher@state.or.us, 
Rep.TinaKotek@state.or.us, Representative Greg Walden 
<Representative.Greg.Walden@mail.house.gov>, 
McIntosh Steven <steven.mcintosh@doj.state.or.us>

The whole lot of you down at 1000 SW 3rd are doing a 
miserable job. I'm sure most of you are just US citizens 
working for corporate governance, unlawfully. 
Defrauding people and persons and operating a 
simulated legal activity. How's that for an interest 
creating opening remark? 

The Mark O. Hatfield Federal Building, built on Oregon. 
not federal land as Constitutionally required. Starting 
with the building, which is a fraud. You would rather be 
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deceitful and criminal instead of actually doing the 
"taking" in a lawful manner. You would rather lie, cheat 
and steal than obtain the land properly.
That's a fact. Then seal the records by court order. Can 
you spell BOGUS???

The judiciary cannot function in the federal district 
courts. That is because they removed the Constitution 
from their oath in 1991. The whole bunch need to be 
fired as they are not in honor with the people. That's 
another fact.

A FOIA demand proved that Billy Williams, Anna J. 
Brown and Michael Mosman were not in lawful 
compliance with their job requirements/qualifications. 
Unlawful performance of duty. I sent them a copy of 
the FOIA finding. None have proven their Bona Fides 
after notification.

The USMS swarmed Bundy's attorney. That was and is 
still reprehensible. That's a fact.

Not one of the federal corporate employees at 1000 
SW 3rd, will identify "the one supreme Court claiming 
original jurisdiction in law and equity in Article III." 
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WTF You do not know the name of the clerk of that 
enumerated responsibility Article III court.!? You don't 
know the name or address of that court!!! You are all 
incompetent or guilty of misprision of felony. Again a 
fact.

The IRS is a fiction being enforced upon persons that 
are unaware of their status as people. The DOJ entraps 
persons and imprisons people. All done in color of law. 
Another fact.

Anna J. Brown had clerks remove documents from the 
record in Bundy et al. I know because I filed them. and 
got 4 out of 5 back. That is a federal crime. More 
facts.

I filed two cases into the federal district court Portland 
"specifically into an Article III court". They defrauded 
me as they were not an Article III court. DOJ refuses 
to prosecute. USMS may have removed or had the files 
removed. Just a guess. What the hell. If they can 
swarm a man in court!! what's stealing a filed case from 
a court of record???
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FOIA where is the authorization for these actions?? 
Lacking authorization where is the prosecution? Oh! I 
remember. Seth said, "I will not prosecute a judge."

This communiqué is not intended to mislead, defraud, deceive or 
threaten in any way and is submitted in “good faith and with clean 
hands.”  I do lawful not legal and this is my best effort. 
I close with Love, peace, harmony and a prayer. A US Marshal has 
determined my prayer is not a threat. He then reneged on his word, 
which is only good one time.  "Praise the Lord and pass the 
ammunition."

-- Please promulgate this information far and wide with 
enthusiasm!
by: Ron Vrooman for the Beaverton Oversight Committee:

They lost when they murdered 
LaVoy.
Bundys set free 01/08/2018.
Bundy et al acquitted, the fight 
goes on.
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Ronald Vrooman
ronvrooman38@gmail.com
call 503 641 8375
General Delivery
Beaverton, OR [97005]

mailto:ronvrooman38@gmail.com
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3.  one supreme Court McCarron Waters Act11202018 (1)

one supreme Court McCarron Waters Act11202018 (1)

https://scannedretina.files.wordpress.com/2018/12/one-supreme-Court-McCarron-Waters-Act11202018-1.pdf
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